
Agenda Item #: 

 

Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Montgomery and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works  
  Steve Finton, City Engineer 
  Edward Kao, Senior Civil Engineer 
 
DATE: February 15, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Authorize the City Manager to Award a Contract to Willdan 

Engineering for Design Services for the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Water Main 
Replacement Project – Phase 1 for an Amount Not-to-Exceed $83,360 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council  

1. Authorize the City Manager to Award a Contract to Willdan Engineering for Design 
Services for the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Water Main Replacement Project – Phase 1 for an 
Amount Not-to-Exceed $83,360. 

2. Authorize the City Manager to approve a contract amendment extending the term of the 
existing as-needed professional services agreement with Willdan Engineering to June 30, 
2012. 

 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
Water Funds in the amount of $200,000 have been appropriated for the design of this project 
(Account number 11835E) through the fiscal year 2010-2011 Capital Improvement Program. 
Construction funds in the amount of $2,000,000 are scheduled to be appropriated through the fiscal 
year 2011-12 Capital Improvement Program. The total cost for Phase 1 consultant design services 
shall not exceed $83,360, leaving $116,640 available for Phase 2 consultant design services costs 
and construction.  
 

Budget  
Water Funds (Current Appropriation)                              CIP 11835E $200,000.00 

Anticipated Expenditures 
Design Contract,  Phase 1                (Willdan Engineering) $  83,360.00 
ESTIMATED FUND BALANCE Available for Phase 2 and Construction $116,640.00 
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BACKGROUND: 
This project is part of the City’s annual water main replacement program.  This program replaces 
old and/or undersized water mains.  These main replacements will reduce the risk of main breaks 
and will enhance water flow.   
 
As part of the fiscal year 2011-2012 Water Main Replacement Project – Phase 1, new 6” diameter 
ductile iron pipe shall replace existing water mains in the following streets: 
 

No. St. Name From To Length (LF) 
1 1st St. Highland Ave. Valley Dr. 1,200 
2 1st St. Ocean Dr.  Highland Ave. 540 
3 3rd St. Ocean Dr.  Highland Ave. 540 
4 4th St. Ocean Dr.  Highland Ave. 540 
5 5th St. Ocean Dr.  Manhattan Ave. 200 
6 Highland Ave. 1st St. Homer St.  250 
7 Highland Ave. 2nd St.  1st St. 250 
8 Homer St. Highland Ave. Morningside Dr. 250 
9 Manhattan Ave 8th St  15th St 2,000 
10 Morningside Dr. 1st St. Homer St.  250 
11 Vista Dr. Rosecrans Ave.  27th St. 2,320 

Total 8,340  
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On February 5, 2008, City Council awarded professional services agreements to AAE 
Incorporated, DGA Consultants, PSOMAS, RKA Consulting Group and WILLDAN Engineering 
to provide as-needed engineering design services for a three-year term.  These agreements were 
established to expedite completion of Capital Improvement Program projects.   
 
A Request for Engineering Design Services & Fees for design of the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 
Water Main Replacement Project – Phase 1 was issued to the consultants listed below.  These 
consultants provided their proposals and fee (also shown below).   
 

1. WILLDAN Engineering (not to exceed fee of $83,360) 
2. DGA Consultants (not to exceed fee of $96,240) 
3. RKA Consulting Group (not to exceed fee of $99,450) 
4. PSOMAS (not to exceed fee of $115,026) 

 
City staff evaluated the proposals and ranked the firms based on qualifications and approach. 
Staff deems that the team, approach and fee proposed by Willdan Engineering to be the most 
effective proposal. Staff recommends that the design contract be awarded to Willdan 
Engineering. 
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Staff expects that the plans and specifications for the fiscal year 2011-2012 Water Main 
Replacement Project – Phase 1 would be completed and ready for bidding by May of 2011 with 
construction in summer of 2011.  
 
The existing agreement with Willdan Engineering expires on February 25, 2011.  It is expected 
that the services of Willdan Engineering will be needed for design and construction.  It is 
recommended that the term of the existing agreement with Willdan Engineering be extended to 
June 30, 2012. 
 
Attachments:   

1) Map of Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Water Main Replacement Project Locations 
2) Amendment No. 1 to Extend Agreement Term 
3) Proposed Professional Services Agreement with Willdan Engineering for the fiscal year 

2011-2012 Water Main Replacement Project – Phase 1    
 
   
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
 Robert Wadden, City Attorney 
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